
             
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY,  FEBRUARY 16, 2022, AT 5:30 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 

ON MARCH 4, 2020, CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM DECLARED A STATE OF EMERGENCY IN 

CALIFORNIA AS A RESULT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, FOR WHICH STATE AND SAN BERNARDINO 

COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH OFFICIALS HAVE CONTINUED TO RECOMMENDED MEASURES TO PROMOTE 

SOCIAL DISTANCING. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, AND CORRESPONDING 

FINDINGS OF THE BOARD THAT CURRENTLY REMAIN IN EFFECT, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC 

LOCATION FOR THIS MEETING AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND PUBLIC MAY 

ATTEND THIS MEETING BY TELEPHONE OR VIDEO CONFERENCE. 
 

To join by Zoom please click the below link: 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89820274955?pwd=QWFCZE1RQTdvNGF2RzlkTkxobmt1dz09 
 
 

Or you may join by phone at 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID:  898 2027 4955  Passcode: 757384 

 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER - 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. 

 
7. 

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM (ROLLCALL) - 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA -  

STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS – GOVT. CODE § 54953(e) – The Board shall, 
by majority vote, determine whether the conditions justifying the adoption of District 
Resolution No. 21-1035 on October 6, 2021, remain in effect, such that the Board will renew 
its findings in Resolution No. 21-1035 for an additional 30 days. Such conditions include that 
(1) the State of Emergency declared by California Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, 
relative to the COVID-19 Emergency, remains in effect; and (2) State or Local Health 
Officials continue to recommend or impose measures to promote social distancing in 
connection with such Emergency, and/or due to existing rate of community transmission and 
the small meeting space available to the District for in-person attendance, the provision of a 
unrestricted physical location for the District’s meetings would present imminent risks to the 
health and safety of attendees.  Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Directors 
renew its findings set forth in Resolution No. 21-1035 for additional 30 days.  

PUBLIC COMMENT – This is the time set aside for public comment on any District 

related matter, whether appearing on the agenda or not.  At the discretion of the Board 

President, however, comments on a particular agendized item may be deferred until that item 

is heard.  Please state your name and limit your comments to 3 minutes. 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in 

nature and will be enacted in a single motion without discussion.  Any Board member or 

member of the public may request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar and 

acted on separately.  

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 1 of 29

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89820274955?pwd=QWFCZE1RQTdvNGF2RzlkTkxobmt1dz09


Pages 4-16 

 

Pages 17-19 
 

Pages 20-26 

 
 

 

Pages 27 

 

 

 

Pages 28-29 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. 

 

9. 

 

 

10. 

 

11. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

13. 

 

 
 

 

 

14. 

• December Check Register (reviewed by the Finance Committee on February 9, 

2022) 

• Draft Minutes February 2, 2022 
 

EVAPORATIVE COOLER STUDY – Tony Walters, Conservation Specialist, Mojave 

Desert Resource Conservation District – Recommend that the Board of Directors receive for 

information only. 
 

BY-DIVISION BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT UPDATE (GOVT. CODE § 22000 ET 

SEQ) – General Counsel Hoskinson – Recommend that the Board of Directors receive for 

information only. 
 

SADDLEBACK PIPELINE & DESIGN PROJECT RECAP – Director Anne Roman – 

Recommend that the Board of Directors receive for information only. 
 

DIRECTOR REPORTS/COMMENTS– 
 

• Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant – 
 

• Mojave Water Agency (MWA) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) – February 3, 

2022, at 10:00 a.m. - Director Jarlsberg 
 

• Finance Committee – February 9, 2022 – President Floen & Director Unger 
 

• Water Resources & Operations Committee – February 9, 2022, at 10:30 a.m. – 

Director Doolittle & Director Jarlsberg 
 

• Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission – February 9, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. – President 

Floen 
 

• Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors Meeting – February 10, 2022, at 10:30 

a.m.  – Director Delph 
 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS –  
 

• Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors Meeting – February 24, 2022, at 10:30 

a.m.  – Director Doolittle 
 

• JBWD Legislative & Public Information Committee – March 2, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. – 

Director Unger, Director Jarlsberg, & Kathleen Radnich, Public Information 

Consultant 
 

• JBWD Board of Directors Meeting – March 2, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. – All Directors 
 

• Citizens Advisory Council Meeting – March 8, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. – Chairperson 

David Carrillo 
 

• JBWD Finance Committee – March 9, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. – President Floen & 

Director Unger 
 

• JBWD Water Resources & Operations Committee – March 9, 2022, at 10:30 a.m. -

Vice President Doolittle & Director Jarlsberg 
 

CLOSED SESSION - CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS -

(Govt. Code § 54956.8) - Property: Sunset Road, Joshua Tree, CA  92252 (San Bernardino 

County Assessor Parcel No. 0603-231-14-0000). Agency negotiator: Sarah Johnson, Acting 

General Manager. Negotiating parties: Desert Art Studios LLC. Under negotiation: Price and 

terms of payment. 
 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSSION –  

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION -  

ADJOURNMENT –  

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 2 of 29



  

     

INFORMATION 
 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. Members of the public wishing to 

attend the meeting that require other reasonable modifications or accommodation to facilitate such attendance should contact 

Beverly Krushat at 760-974-0072 or bkrushat@jbwd.com as soon as feasible before the meeting to make such request.  
 

Availability of agenda materials:  Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a 

majority of the members of the Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject to discussion 

or consideration at an open meeting of the Board are available online at jbwd.com for public inspection, or in the District’s office, 

61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252 (“District Office”). If such writings are distributed to members of the Board less 

than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available at the reception desk of the District Office and on-line at jbwd.com 

during business hours at the same time as they are distributed to the Board members. 
 

Disability-related accommodations:  The Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors meeting room is wheelchair accessible. 

If you require any special disability-related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.) please contact Ms. 

Krushat at the District Office at (760) 974-0072 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting. This agenda can be obtained in alternative format upon written request to Ms. Krushat in the District Office, at least 

seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

   
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 3 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 4 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 5 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 6 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 7 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 8 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 9 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 10 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 11 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 12 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 13 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 14 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 15 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 16 of 29



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 2022 
 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Floen called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. via 

teleconference. 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – President Floen asked for a rollcall and the following Directors are 

present: Vice President Doolittle, Director Jarlsberg, and Director Unger are in attendance via teleconference. 

ADMINISTER THE OATH OF OFFICE TO APPOINTED DIRECTOR BARBARA DELPH – President Floen 

administered the Oath of Office to Director Barbara Delph.  This was followed by congratulations the Board 

Directors, and the CAC members that were present. 

STAFF PRESENT –Sarah Johnson, Acting General Manager, Anne Roman, Director of Finance, Autumn Rich, 

Accounting Supervisor, Brandon Warner, CIRP Supervisor, and Beverly Krushat, Executive Assistant, are in 

attendance via teleconference. 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT – Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant and Jeff Hoskinson, Legal 

Counsel. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – 

MSC¹ (Delph/Doolittle) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Agenda of February 2, 2022. 

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS – GOV’T CODE §54953(e) – The Board of Directors voted 

unanimously to extend the State of Emergency Findings for another 30 days. 

MSC¹ (Unger/Jarlsberg) 5/0/0 motion carried to extend the State of Emergency Findings for another 30 days. 

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

PUBLIC COMMENT – Frank Coate, Vice Chair, Citizens Advisory Council (CAC), welcomed Director Delph 

to the Board of Directors.  David Carrillo, Chairperson, Citizens Advisory Council (CAC), also welcomed 

Director Delph to the Board of Directors. 

CONSENT CALENDAR –  

MSC¹ (Unger/Floen) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Consent Calendar.   

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

STANDING COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS – President Floen stated that the Standing Committee 

Assignments will remain the same, listed below: 

• Finance Committee– President Floen and Director Unger 

• Legislative & Public Information Committee – Director Jarlsberg & Director Unger 

• Water Resources & Operations Committee – Director Doolittle & Director Jarlsberg 

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 17 of 29



ADHOC Committees are as follows: 

• New Admin Building – Director Delph & Director Doolittle 

• New GM Search – President Floen & Director Delph 

CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL (CAC) APPOINTMENT – The Board of Directors received and accepted 

Mr. Glen Harris’s application to be a member of the Citizens Advisory Council. 

MSC¹ (Unger/Delph) 5/0/0 motion carried to appoint Mr. Glen Harris to the Citizens Advisory Council (CAC).   

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF ACTING GENERAL MANAGER SARAH JOHNSON AS BOARD 

SECRETARY PER SECTION 4.08 – The Board of Directors voted unanimously Acting General Manager as 

Board secretary. 

MSC¹ (Doolittle/Unger) 5/0/0 motion carried to appoint Acting General Manager Sarah Johnson as Board 

Secretary.  

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

CHANGE OF LAIF AUTHORIZATION FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS – Director Anne Roman gave the staff 

report and stated that Resolution No. 21-1038 provides authority to file a “Revised Authorization for Transfer of 

Funds” with LAIF.  Former General Manager Ban will be removed as an authorized transaction initiator and 

Acting General Manager Johnson will be added as a long-term option under her Director of Administration title. 

MSC¹ (Jarlsberg/Delph) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve Resolution No. 21-1038 to provide authority to file a 

revised “Authorization for Transfer of Funds” with LAIF. 

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

RATE & FEE COMPETITIVE BIDDING CONSIDERATION OF EXCEPTION – Director Anne Roman gave 

the staff report and requested that the Board of Directors approve the exception to the Bidding Policy and 

provide authority to enter into an agreement between Joshua Basin Water District and Bartle Wells Associates to 

provide Rate & Fee Study services.  Staff recommends making an exception to the competitive bidding process 

and soliciting a bid only from our prior Rate Study consultant, Bartle Wells Associates (BWA).  This was 

followed by a brief Q&A period with the Board of Directors. This was followed by comments and questions 

from the Board of Directors. Director Delph suggested that the Board vote to forego the RFP process and wo 

with Bartle Wells Associates for the Rate Study. 

Public Comment – Frank Coate stated that Bartle Wells is a good company and feels they will do a good job for 

the District. 

MSC¹ (Unger/Delph) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the exception to the Bidding Policy and to enter into an 

agreement between the Joshua Basin Water District and Bartle Wells Associates to provide Rate & Fee Study 

services. 

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 18 of 29



DIRECTOR MEETING REPORTS – Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant reported on 2022 

pending classes, grant updates and the Farmer’s Market theme for February is “Careers in Water”, and the “Low 

Income Assistance Program”.  This was followed by Director Unger and Director Jarlsberg commenting on the 

meetings they attended. Chairperson Carrillo gave a report on the last CAC meeting and commented that Frank 

Coate was voted in as the new Vice Chairperson of the CAC. 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS – President Floen read off the list of the upcoming meetings. 

RECESS – At approximately 6:36 p.m. the Board members took a short recess before they began the Closed 

Session. 

CLOSED SESSION – At approximately 6:48 p.m. the Board members returned from a short recess and met in 

Closed Session on Item 16 of the Agenda.   

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – At approximately 8:14 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session and Jeff 

Hoskinson, Legal Counsel report the Board met in Closed Session on items 16(A) and 16(B) and took no 

reportable action in Closed Session.  A recommendation was made on item 16(B) for consideration to 

temporarily increase the salary of Acting General Manager Sarah Johnson to the amount of $210,000 per year, 

which is the salary of the former General Manager, for the duration of her service as Acting General Manager, 

with such increase retroactive to December 23, 2021. 

MSC¹ (Unger/Jarlsberg) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the temporary increase in salary of Acting General 

Manager Sarah Johnson to $210,000 retroactive to December 23, 2021. 

Ayes:  Delph, Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

ADJOURNMENT – The Board of Directors adjourned the meeting at 8:16 p.m. 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 19 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 20 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 21 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 22 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 23 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 24 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 25 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 26 of 29

BKrushat
Typewritten Text



 

006392.0000636

064679.1 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

MEETING AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors DATE: February 16, 2022 

 

REPORT TO: Board of Directors  

PREPARED BY: Jeff Hoskinson, General Counsel 

TOPIC: BY-DIVISION/DISTRICT BASED ELECTIONS 

UPDATE 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend that the Board of Directors receive for 

information only. 

 

ANALYSIS: The District is required by Water Code Section 30733(d) to 

adjust the boundaries of its By-Division voter districts after 

each federal decennial census, provided that the population in 

its existing boundaries deviates by more than 10 percent.  In 

making such adjustments, if necessary, the District is required 

to adjust the boundaries of its divisions so that, as far as 

practicable, the divisions are equal in population and in 

compliance with specified provisions of Federal law.  In 

adjusting such boundaries, the Board should give consideration 

to the following factors: (1) topography, (2) geography, (3) 

cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity, and compactness of 

territory, and (4) community of interests of the division.  The 

District is required to complete such adjustments by April 17, 

2022, pursuant to Elections Code Section 22000.1(b). 

 

Based on a prior internal analysis, indications were that the 

District would be required to adjust its boundaries due to a 

more than 10 percent deviation between its By-Division 

district population totals.  In January 2022, the Board hired a 

demographer, Cooperative Strategies, to confirm that the 

adjustments were necessary, and based on such results, initiate 

the process of preparing new maps. 

 

General Counsel Hoskinson will provide a brief update on 

those findings, and summary of the steps that will follow over 

the next few meetings. 

  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM: 2.0 Meet regulatory requirements for water, wastewater, 

financial, and administrative functions. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 27 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 28 of 29



Board of Directors Meeting 
February 16, 2022  Page 29 of 29




